
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of a public meeting of  
Learning & Culture Policy and Scrutiny Committee 

 
To: Councillors Craghill (Chair), Fenton (Vice-Chair), Dew, 

S Barnes, Brooks, Jackson and Wells  
Dr Dickinson (Co-opted Statutory Member) and  
Mr Hagon (Co-opted Statutory Member) 
 

Date: Wednesday, 15 June 2016 
 

Time: Upon the conclusion of the Learning & Culture Policy and 
Scrutiny Committee (Pre Decision Calling In) meeting but 
no sooner than 6.00pm 
 

Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039) 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point, Members are asked to declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda 
 

2. Public Participation   
        At this point in the meeting members of the public who have   

registered to speak can do so.  The deadline for registering is 
5.00pm on Tuesday 14 June 2016.  Members of the public can 
speak on agenda items or matters within the remit of the 
committee. 

 
To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officers for 
the meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda. 

 



 

 

 Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note this meeting may be filmed and webcast or audio 
recorded and that includes any registered public speakers, who 
have given their permission.  The broadcast can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts  and this will be uploaded onto 
the Council’s website following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officers (whose contact details 
are at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at 
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6453/protocol_for_webca
sting_filming_and_recording_council_meetingspdf 
 

3. Attendance of Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & 
Tourism - Priorities & Challenges for 2016/17   

 

 The Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & Tourism will be in 
attendance to provide an update on his priorities and challenges 
for the 2016-17 municipal year. 
 

4. York Museums Trust: Core Partnership 
Objectives Update - 2015/16 end of year report   

(Pages 1 - 10) 

 This report updates Members on the current activities of the York 
Museums Trust (YMT) against the agreed core partnership 
objectives. 

5. Learning and Culture Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee Draft Workplan & Potential Scrutiny 
Topics for 2016/17   

(Pages 11 - 12) 

 Members are asked to consider the Committee’s draft workplan  
and potential scrutiny topics for the 2016-17 municipal year.  
 

6. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6453/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_council_meetingspdf
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/6453/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_council_meetingspdf


 

 

Democracy Officers 
 
Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job share)  
Contact details:  

 Telephone – (01904) 551031 

 Email catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk and 
louise.cook@york.gov.uk  

(If contacting by email, please send to both Democracy Officers 
named above). 

 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officers responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk
mailto:louise.cook@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

   

Learning & Culture Policy & Scrutiny Committee 15 June 2016 
 
Report of the Assistant Director (Communities, Culture & Public Realm) 

 
York Museums Trust: Core Partnership Objectives Update - 2015/16 end of 
year report 
 

Summary 
 

1. This report updates Members on the current activities of the York Museums 
Trust (YMT) against the agreed core partnership objectives. 

Background 
 

2. YMT was set up as an independent trust in order to achieve a business 
turnaround of the museums and art gallery and to enhance the cultural 
provision within the city.   It successfully addressed its initial targets which 
were concerned principally with: stabilising visitor numbers, delivering new 
income streams, creating new exhibitions and interpretative services, 
creating an education strategy, increasing use and involvement by residents, 
and cataloguing of the collection. 
 

3. New objectives were agreed by the Executive on 28 April, on the 
recommendation of this scrutiny committee, to be the long-term shared 
objectives of the partnership between the Council and YMT:  
 

• Creation of museum and gallery provision capable of contributing to 
positioning York as a world class cultural centre 

• Provision that is a source of inspiration and enjoyment for all and a 
stimulus for learning and skills development  

• The protection and conservation of the collections, gardens and 
buildings for future generations including improved storage 

• Promotion of the city’s museums and collections through a varied range 
of activities which could include exhibitions, displays, community 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



projects, volunteering opportunities, formal learning for schools, 
informal activities for families, and adult learning   

• Increased access to the city’s collections, gardens and buildings and 
increasing visitor numbers, especially young people 

• Recognition of the special significance of the museums and gallery for 
York residents through the maintenance of pricing incentives for York 
residents and opportunities for free access 

• The facilitation of access for those most likely to be excluded through a 
range of outreach activities and pricing mechanisms 

• Excellent customer service and visitor experience 

• Improved public realm through capital investment and imaginative 
interpretation schemes  

• Active international partnerships to enhance public programmes, to 
increase YMT’s and the city’s  reputation, and to raise funds 

• Retention of registered museum status and development of the 
designated collections to ensure maximum public benefit 

• The maintenance of the Museum Gardens on the Register of Parks and 
Gardens of Special Historic Interest maintained and the register of 
botanical gardens 

• Public access to the Museum Gardens daily (except relevant Christmas 
/ New Year holidays) unless closure is necessary for reasons of public 
safety 

• Effective, open and transparent governance including an effective 
access and equalities policies coving trustees and staff recruitment 
practices 

4. The Executive agreed that twice-yearly reports be made to this committee, 
covering the activities of both YMT and the Council, and highlighting 
developments and challenges against: 

• The Core Partnership Objectives set out above 

• YMT’s Long-Term Financial Plan 

• YMT’s Capital Development Plan 

5.  Although these arrangements were only agreed in this financial year it 
makes sense to report against them retrospectively for 15/16, in respect of 
the core partnership objectives, in order to begin the new reporting system.  

Page 2



Reports on the Financial Plan and the Capital Development Plan will be 
made during 2016/17.  The report from YMT is attached at Annex 1. 

6. On the Council’s side, legal advice has been commissioned, in consultation 
with YMT, to address this committee’s recommendation that a consistent 
charitable framework be implemented for all museum assets and collections, 
to replace the various, current legal agreements.  Our legal advisor will 
shortly be producing a work plan to schedule the necessary work.  A report 
will then be taken to the Executive Member for Culture, Leisure and Tourism 
with appropriate recommendations. 

7. With regard to agreeing the Council’s future financial support to YMT this 
committee recommended that: 

• An annual discussion take place between YMT and the Council during 
August-September each year 

• In support of that discussion YMT will provide their refreshed 5 year 
financial plan and an updated capital development plan 

The appropriate arrangements are being put into place to implement this. 

Options 
 

8. This report is for information and there are no options to consider. 
 
Corporate Objectives 
 

9. YMT contributes to a number of corporate objectives including developing 
opportunities for residents and visitors to experience York as a vibrant and 
eventful city, improving opportunities for learning, and in strengthening 
York's economy through investment in the tourism infrastructure.    

Implications 
 

10. Finance:  The Council makes an annual grant to YMT.  In 2015/16 the grant 
was £607k, a reduction of £500k compared to 2014/15.  The grant remains 
at the same level for 2016/17.   
 

11. The report has no implications relating to: Human Resources, Equalities, 
Legal, Crime and Disorder, Information Technology, Property. 
 

 

Page 3



Risk Management 
 

12. This report is for information and there are no risks to consider. 
 
Recommendation 
 

13. That the Committee comments upon the activities of the York Museums 
Trust. 
 
Reason:  To fulfil the Council’s role under the agreed partnership 

arrangements. 
 

Contact Details 

Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for Report: 

Charlie Croft 
Assistant Director 
(Communities, Culture 
&Public Realm) 

Ext. 3371 

Mike Woodward 
Chief Operating Officer 
York Museums Trust 

Charlie Croft 
Assistant Director (Communities, Culture and 
Public Realm) 
 

 

 

 

 

Report Approved  Date 6 June 2016 

Wards Affected:   All  

For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Annexes: 
Annex 1: York Museums Trust report for the period to 31 March 2016 
 
 
Abbreviations found in either the report or annex: 
CoCA - Centre of Ceramic Art 
CYC – City of York Council 
SASH – Safe and Sound Homes 
YMT – York Museums Trust 

Page 4



 
Annex 1 

 
York Museums Trust 

 
Report Against Core Partnership Objectives 2015-16 

 

Creation of museum and gallery provision capable of contributing to 
positioning York as a world class cultural centre  

2015 was a momentous year for York Art Gallery which, on 1 August, 
reopened to the public after a two year extension and refurbishment.  An 
investment of approximately £8m capital spend has increased the gallery‟s 
public space by more than 60% and created an appropriate home for the 
newly created Centre of Ceramic Art (CoCA) to display the gallery‟s 
exceptional collection of British studio pottery. 

The newly fitted-out exhibition spaces will enable the gallery to display its 
own collections, touring exhibitions and loans of the very highest quality.  
The opening displays celebrated the core collections, complemented and 
enhanced by specially commissioned works from contemporary artists, most 
notably Clare Twomey, Mark Hearld, Phil Eglin and Susie MacMurray. 

The list of funders includes: Arts Council England; Karen Madsen; Peter 
Emil Madsen; City of York Council; Anthony Shaw Collection Trust; 
DCMS/Wolfson; Garfield Weston Foundation; The Foyle Foundation; Sir 
Siegmund Warburg‟s Voluntary Settlement; Holbeck Charitable Trust; John 
Ellerman Foundation; Friends of York Art Gallery; J.Paul Getty Jnr 
Charitable Trust; Shepherd Group; The Patricia and Donald Shepherd 
Charitable Trust; Feoffees of St Michael‟s Spurriergate; The Headley Trust; 
The Pilgrim Trust and, of course, the Friends of York Art Gallery. 

The new gallery has already received many plaudits from visitors and the 
media, as well a number of prestigious awards, including three RIBA awards 
for the project‟s architecture and Visit York Attraction of the Year. The 
gallery is one of only five Finalists from across the UK in the Art Fund 
Museum of the Year.  The gallery has also been nominated for the White 
Rose Awards and European Museum of the Year. 

The creation of the Centre of Ceramic Art gives York a marketable identity 
as a destination for those interested in ceramics from around the world, 
building on the city‟s unique collection of British studio pottery. 

 

Page 5



 
Annex 1 

Provision that is a source of inspiration and enjoyment for all and a 
stimulus for learning and skills development  

In March 2016 York Castle Museum launched its new „Shaping the Body‟ 
exhibition which builds on the museum‟s reputation for providing highly 
accessible and fun ways to learn about the past.  The exhibition explores 
400 years of fashion, food and lifestyles to show the impact of all three on 
our bodies.  It covers some challenging topics but without dampening the 
enjoyment.  

The Yorkshire Museum received national publicity as a result of its 
partnership with the Universities of York, Manchester and Chester, bringing 
the nation‟s attention to the discovery of a Mesolithic pendant thought to be 
the oldest art found in Britain. 
 
The protection and conservation of the collections, gardens and 
buildings for future generations including improved storage 

The investment in York Art Gallery has greatly improved the fabric of the 
building, most notably by stabilising a main gable wall that was revealed 
during the project not to be properly tied in or underpinned.   

The project also greatly improved the fine art store, removing the air 
conditioning plant from the room and installing modern racking for the 
paintings and works on paper collections. 

Plans are being laid to make the best use of the newly acquired storage unit 
at Birch Park. 

Significant investment has also been made in Museum Gardens, including 
making safe and accessible a significant area of land which was polluted as 
a result of WWII air raids. 
 
Promotion of the city’s museums and collections through a varied 
range of activities which could include exhibitions, displays, 
community projects, volunteering opportunities, formal learning for 
schools, informal activities for families, and adult learning  

From April 2015 to March 2016 YMT worked with 352 volunteers, who 
contributed a total of 14,192 hours across all sites.  These hours were split 
between visitor facing roles (9,344 hrs) and behind the scenes roles (4,848 
hrs).  York Castle Museum in particular benefitted from volunteer input 
behind the scenes in the run up to the new „Shaping the Body‟ exhibition, 
which volunteers supported with over 1,200 hours of research, as well as 

Page 6



 
Annex 1 

practical help in emptying the gallery and helping with the installation of the 
new exhibition. 

There were 49 individual opportunities available for volunteers throughout 
this period.  Two major new projects during this time were the Anthony 
Shaw space at York Art Gallery and the introduction of costumed volunteers 
on Kirkgate, the Victorian street at the Castle Museum, which have both 
attracted high numbers of volunteers, and are enhancing the visitor offer at 
both sites. 

YMT continued our work with a variety of partners, to provide volunteer and 
placement opportunities for people with additional support needs at each 
site. 

The learning programmes continued to thrive and during the academic year 
2014-15, 35,561 children visited in booked groups across the three venues, 
of which 7,441 were from York schools. 
 
Increased access to the city’s collections, gardens and buildings and 
increasing visitor numbers, especially young people  

It was a difficult year for the visitor economy, especially after the December 
floods, and in common with many other York attractions we saw some 
significant decreases in visitor numbers. The overall number of visitors held 
up reasonably well at 403,724 thanks to the reopening of York Art Gallery in 
August 2015. Numbers at York St Mary's dropped dramatically simply 
because there was no summer exhibition in 2015 due to the reopening of 
York Art Gallery. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recognition of the special significance of the museums and gallery for 
York residents through the maintenance of pricing incentives for York 
residents and opportunities for free access  

YMT‟s relationship with its local community is a priority for the trust and YMT 
is determined that people who cannot afford the cost of admission charges 
can still access its museums. 

 Actual   
Last year % 

Change 

York Castle Museum 246,973  290,841 -15% 

Yorkshire Museum 88,997  98,911 -10% 

York St Mary's 6,966  28,105 -75% 

York Art Gallery 60,788  0 n/a 

Total 403,724  417,857 -3% 

Page 7



 
Annex 1 

York Residents with a York Card can become a YMT Card Holder for half of 
the normal price.  Admission for children is free of charge at all YMT sites 
and, thanks to a contribution from CYC, residents aged 17-24 and those 
entitled to most forms of income related benefit can get a YMT Card free of 
charge.  1,022 people have taken up that offer to date. 

In total 8,140 York residents have supported the charity by becoming a YMT 
Card Holder.  

YMT took part in the Residents Festival in January and saw thousands of 
additional visitors as a result.  A YMT residents free weekend has also been 
introduced, it will be 25-26 June this year. 
 
The facilitation of outreach activities and pricing mechanisms 
designed to encourage visits by those who do not traditionally use the 
museums or gallery  

YMT‟s public programme of talks, workshops and events for adults also 
includes regular sensory tours, particularly suitable those with a sight 
impairment, and monthly practical, inclusive Arts for Well-being sessions. 

York Art Gallery alone has hosted 15 Workshops with community 
organisations including York Blind & Partially Sighted Society, York Carers 
Forum, Magnetic Arts who run arts workshops for adults with mental health 
issues and Blueberry Academy who lead work related learning for adults 
with additional support needs. Since reopening the Gallery‟s learning and 
outreach programmes have given 61 Days paid work to 19 local artists. 

The 10,000 slip cast bowls that make up Clare Twomey's installation, 
Manifest, were made in workshops at York College, the University of York 
and in London at Westminster School, involving over170 People. 

The Project Gallery at York Art Gallery, has hosted 4 exhibitions that have 
involved 4,183, mostly local, people in producing art for display. 

Both the 1914 and Shaping the Body galleries at York Castle Museum have 
community programmed spaces.  Groups engaged with include the York 
Quakers, York Oral History Society, the 1914-18 Commemorative Quilt 
Group, Friends of York Cemetery and CYC‟s Youth Offending Team. 

York Castle Museum was also recently one of five locations that displayed 
artwork by homeless people, in a project run with York SASH 
 
 

Page 8



 
Annex 1 

Excellent customer service and visitor experience  

The 2015 visitor survey results were: 

At Yorkshire Museum:      

 99% of visitors were either satisfied or very satisfied with their visit  

 99% would recommend the museum to others 

 93% would visit again 

 99% said it was good or very good value for money 
 
When asked which was their favourite exhibition or experience 51% 
responded “all of it”. 

At York Castle Museum: 

 99% of visitors were either satisfied or very satisfied with their visit  

 100% would recommend the museum to others 

 96% would visit again 

 98% said it was good or very good value for money 

In a reversal of previous years‟ results, the Prison Cells were the 
favourite exhibition of 36% of visitors, the Victorian Street was favourite 
with 24% and 20% responded “all of it”. 

At York Art Gallery: 

 99% of visitors were either satisfied or very satisfied with their 
visit  

 100% would recommend the gallery to others 

 88% would visit again (of those saying „No‟ nearly 90% gave 
„Won‟t be in York again‟ as the reason) 

 94% said it was good or very good value for money 

The new „Centre of Ceramic Art‟ was the most popular gallery - 38% of 
visitors named it their favourite. “All of it” was the second most popular 
response (at 26%). 

 

Improved public realm through capital investment and imaginative 
interpretation schemes  

Investment has continued in Museum Gardens, more than £1m has been 
spent on extending the Gardens to the rear of York Art Gallery, creating a 
major new high quality public space for the city. 

Page 9



 
Annex 1 

The newly planted Edible Wood is thriving and the first installation in the 
new Artists Garden is planned for July. 

There is now a green, landscaped route from the River Ouse through to 
Exhibition Square.  St Leonard‟s Place is the only obstacle in a traffic free 
pedestrian route from the Station to the Minster and the wider Footstreets 
area. 
 
Active international partnerships to enhance public programmes, to 
increase YMT’s and the city’s reputation, and to raise funds  

Agreement has been reached with the Museum De Buitenplaats in the 
Netherlands to produce and tour an exhibition of the works of Albert Moore, 
the popular Victorian painter who was born and grew up in York.  The show 
is scheduled for 2017 in York Art Gallery. 

York‟s objects have gone on loan to the Staatliche Museum in Berlin, the 
Museum of Dieppe and Scuderie del Quirinale in Rome. 
 
Retention of registered museum status and development of the 
designated collections to ensure maximum public benefit  

York Art Gallery‟s was re-awarded Accredited Museum status during the 
year, joining York Castle Museum and Yorkshire Museum which 
successfully went through the process in 2014. 
 
The maintenance of the Museum Gardens on the Register of Parks and 
Gardens of Special Historic Interest maintained and the register of 
botanical gardens  

Continuing. 
 
Public access to the Museum Gardens daily (except relevant 
Christmas / New Year holidays) unless closure is necessary for 
reasons of public safety  

Continuing. 
 
Effective, open and transparent governance including effective access 
and equalities policies coving trustees and staff recruitment practices  

YMT has an Equal Opportunities Action Plan against which progress is 
regularly reviewed. 
 

Page 10



 
 

 

 

Meeting 
Dates 

Learning & Culture Policy & Scrutiny Committee – Work Plan 2016-17 

Wed 15 
June 2016 

@ 6pm 

1. York Museums Trust – Partnership Delivery Plan Bi-annual Update Report (Reyahn King) 
2.   Attendance of Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & Tourism – Priorities & Challenges for 

2016/17 (Cllr Ayre – attendance confirmed) 
3.   Workplan & Discussion re potential scrutiny topics for 2016/17: 
  

 Play:  a follow-up to the call-in.  Conducting a consultation with children and young people on their 
views about the availability of play opportunities and the barriers to play.  This will support 
implementation of the new play policy through the identification of relevant priorities for developing 
high quality play and for future investment 

 

 Local Environmental Projects:  Identification of best practice is developing local schemes.  How to 
identify appropriate projects, recruitment and management of volunteers, the role of the voluntary 
sector, appropriate models of community management, over-coming any barriers  

  

Wed 13 July 
2016 

@ 5:30pm 

 

1.  Attendance of previous Executive Member for Education, Children & Young People's Services - 
Update on previous year’s Priorities & Challenges  

2.   Year End Finance & Performance Monitoring Report (Richard Hartle) 
3.   Update on Parks Development (Dave Meigh) 
4.   Bi-annual progress report on Safeguarding & Looked After Children (Eoin Rush) 
5.   Workplan 2015/16 

Wed 14 Sept 
2016 @ 
5:30pm 

1.   First Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report (Richard Hartle) 
2.   York Safeguarding Board Bi-annual Update (Will Boardman) 
3.   Workplan  2016/17 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

 

Wed 9 Nov 
2016 

@ 5:30pm 

1.   York Theatre Royal SLA Performance Bi-annual Update Report (Liz Wilson) 
2.    Explore York Libraries & Archives Mutual Ltd SLA & Bi-Annual Update (Fiona Williams) 
3.    Learning Services Biannual Update & Draft Self-Assessment Report (Alistair Gourlay) 
4.    School Improvement and Ofsted Update on Schools Performance (Maxine Squire) 
5.    Workplan 2016/17  

Wed 11 
January 
2017 @ 
5:30pm 

1.  York Museums Trust – Partnership Delivery Plan Bi-annual Update Report (Reyahn King) 
2.  Second Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report (Richard Hartle) 
3.  SACRE (Standing Advisory Committee on RE) Annual Report & Review of York Schools’ Agreed 

Syllabus (Mike Jory) 
4.  CYC Bi-annual progress report on Safeguarding & Looked After Children (Eoin Rush) 
5.  Workplan 2016/17 

Wed 22 
March 2017 
@ 5.30pm 

1.   Attendance of Chair of York@Large (Chris Bailey)  
2.   York Theatre Royal – Service Level Agreement Performance Bi-annual Update Report (Liz Wilson) 
3.   York Safeguarding Board Bi-annual Update (Will Boardman) 
4.   Third Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report (Richard Hartle) 
5.   Workplan 2016/17 

Wed 24 May 
2017 @ 
5:30pm 

1.   Attendance of Chair of Learning City (Alison Birkenshaw) 
2.   Explore York Libraries & Archives Mutual Ltd SLA & Bi-Annual Update (Fiona Williams) 
3.   Learning Services Bi-annual Performance Update (Charlie Croft) 
4.   Draft Workplan for 2016/17 

 

P
age 12


	Agenda
	4 York Museums Trust: Core Partnership Objectives Update - 2015/16 end of year report
	Annex 1

	5 Learning and Culture Policy and Scrutiny Committee Draft Workplan & Potential Scrutiny Topics for 2016/17

